ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 3, 2011
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

OVERVI EWS): DIVISION OF ELECTI ONS
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REQ STER

GAIL FENUM Al , Executive Director

D vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an overview of the Division of
El ecti ons.

SARAH FELI X, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Labor and State Affairs Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions during the Division of
El ecti ons overvi ew.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- February 3, 2011



8:05:25 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:05 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
Wl son, Johansen (via teleconference), Petersen, and Lynn were
present at the call to order. Representati ve Gruenberg arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

OVERVI EWS): Division of Elections

8:05:36 AM

CHAIR LYNN announced that the only order of business was the
overview by the Division of Elections.

CHAIR LYNN stated his intent to wait for the internal review
foll owi ng the overvi ew before considering |egislation.

8: 09: 55 AM

GAI L FENUM Al, Executive Director, Division of Elections, Ofice
of the Lieutenant Governor, presented an overview of the
Di vision of Elections. She expressed her appreciation for the
opportunity to address the questions submtted to her by the
committee J[included in the commttee packet], following the
recent election, which she characterized as the election of its
kind in Al aska's history.

M5. FENUMAI |listed all the responsibilities of the division,
i ncl udi ng: conducting all state and federal el ecti ons;
conducting the regional educational attendance area el ections,
which are school board elections in wunorganized comunities
t hroughout Al aska; conducting coastal resource service area

el ections; maintaining the statewide voter registration |ist;
processing initiative, referendum and recall petitions; and
redistricting, which wll happen this year, then reassigning

voters to their new precincts.
8:12: 01 AM

VS. FENUM Al, in response to questions from Chair Lynn,
regarding redistricting, outlined the process being undertaken
by the division for redistricting, and said the redistricting
commttee will nost likely submt its report in April 2012. I n
response to a question regarding law suits, [question 1 in the
handout], M. Fenum ai shared the division's view that none of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- February 3, 2011



the informati on being shared during the overview will have any
i mpact on ongoing lawsuits against the State of Al aska. She
said the MIller v. Treadwell case is still pending. She naned a
couple other cases: Rudol ph v. State of Alaska, which
chal l enges the division's process of counting wite-in ballots,
and Perry v. Treadwell, which is a state election contest case.
She nane those involved in both cases.

8:16: 03 AM

M5. FENUM Al noved on to question 2 from the handout - whether
simlar [wite-in candidate] nanmes could present a problem with
regard to [voters'] intent - and said this is a hypothetical
question, which is not possible to answer wthout know ng the
extenuating circunstances about the wite-in canpaign and the
el ection. Notw thstanding that, she stated that the bottom line
is that the Alaska Supreme Court has "historically and
repeat edly adnoni shed the division to inplenment and honor voter
intent in counting ballots.”

8:16:41 AM

SARAH FELI X, Assistant Attorney General, Labor and State Affairs
Section, Cvil Dvision (Juneau), Departnment of Law, in response
to a question by Chair Lynn, said the court, when considering
issues of voter intent, looks at marks on the ballot, studies
surroundi ng circunstances of the canpaign, and uses a standard
by which it seeks to "enfranchise a voter to the nmaxi num extent
possi ble. "

8:17: 24 AM

M5. FENUM Al noved on to question 3 fromthe handout - regarding
custody ballots - and said AS 15.15.030(2) requires that ballots
be nunbered in sequence to ensure sinplicity and prevent fraud.
She said state regulations require the following to ensure
ball ot security in transportation: all hand counted ballots at
the precincts nust be sealed and nmailed to the director's office
no later than the day following the election, at which point
they are marked as received and stored in an alarmsecured and
| ocked ballot room She offered her understanding that that is
in state ballot regulation 6 AAC 25.060. Ms. Fenum ai stated

that all voted ballots counted by optical scan nachines on
election night are transported that night to a designated
| ocation and secured until picked up by a licensed and bonded

courier service or licensed security officer. She said chain of
cust ody docunents acconpany the ballot shipnents; access to the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- February 3, 2011



ballots prior to shipment is limted to election personnel,
state troopers, or authorized, |icensed security officers. MVs.
Fenum ai said regulations and the division's practices and
policies do not allow any unauthorized person access to ballots.
She relayed that during the wite-in counting process, the
ball ots were in the director's office in an alarmsecured room
prior to being taken to the counting facility. Bef ore those
ballots were renoved, they were logged and itemzed to show
which ballots were taken, transported to the counting facility
by security officers, and rechecked upon arrival. The sane
t hi ng happened when the ballots were returned to the director's
of fice.

8:19: 54 AM
M5. FENUM AI, in response to a question from Representative

Keller, restated who the authorized personnel are. She offered
further details about the transfer of ballots from one

aut horized person to the next. In response to a followup
question from Representative Keller, she confirnmed that she is
confortable with the current process. |In response to a question

from Chair Lynn, she stated that the transportation and security
topi cs she just relayed are covered in state regul ation.

8:22:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN said a constituent suggested an idea to
him wherein a voter could get a receipt after voting and could
track that receipt to ensure that his/her vote was count ed. He
asked Ms. Fenum ai if that idea would be possible.

M5. FENUM Al responded that there is no way to identify a vote
to a voter once it is placed wthout conprom sing the privacy of
t hat person's vote.

8:23:35 AM

M5. FENUM Al noved on to question 4 in the handout - regarding
docunentation of all ballots printed - and said each voting
location is provided with a series of sequentially nunbered
ballots. This information is provided on docunents given to the
voting | ocations. At the end of voting, the election worker
identifies the total nunmber of ballots used and subtracts that
nunber from the initial nunber given. The remaining [unused]
ballots are destroyed at the precinct or returned to the
division for destruction, she said. Voted ballot stubs are
returned to the division. She said this information is also in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- February 3, 2011



6 AAC 25.060. In response to questions from Representative
Keller, she explained that in nost cases, if there is a snall
quantity of wunused ballots, the election worker at the precinct
rips those ballots in half and returns them to the division.
When there are a | arge nunber of unused ballots, they are put in
an envel ope for unused ballots and returned to the division for
shredding. She offered further details related to the reporting
done by election workers. She said she has never experienced an
i nstance where an el ection worker has been dishonest. She said
there is a team of four to six election workers at each
preci nct, and those workers have sworn an oath.

8:27:25 AM

M5. FENUMAI, in response to Chair Lynn, related that the
election officers in the four regional offices recruit their
workers. She said they try to get people fromthe precincts in
which they will work. The workers have to be registered voters.
Ms. Fenum ai noted that many of the division's election workers
have been doing this work for many years, and she praised their
contribution to the division.

CHAI R LYNN expressed his appreciation of election workers.
8:28:24 AM

M5. FENUM Al, in response to Representative Petersen, explained
how "spoiled" ballots are tracked. In response to the chair,
she explained the steps a voter would take in requesting a
repl acenent ballot; she said each voter is allowed two
repl acenent ball ots.

8:29:36 AM

M5. FENUM Al directed attention to question 5 on the handout -
regarding the division's choice to wuse voter intent, thus
contradicting statute - and noted that the statute in question
is AS 15.15.360(a) (10) through (12), which read as foll ows:

(10) In order to vote for a wite-in candidate,
the voter nust wite in the candidate's nanme in the
space provided and fill in the oval opposite the
candidate's name in accordance wth (1) of this
subsecti on.

(11) A vote for a wite-in candidate, other than
a wite-in vote for governor and |ieutenant governor,
shall be counted if the oval is filled in for that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- February 3, 2011



candidate and if the name, as it appears on the wite-
in declaration of candidacy, of the candidate or the
last nanme of the candidate is witten in the space
provi ded.

(12) If the wite-in vote is for governor and
| i eut enant governor, the vote shall be counted if the
oval is filled in and the nanes, as they appear on the
wite-in declaration of candidacy, of the candidates
for governor and |ieutenant governor or the |ast nanes
of the candidates for gover nor and |ieutenant
governor, or the name, as it appears on the wite-in
declaration of candidacy, of the <candidate for
governor or the last name of the <candidate for
governor is witten in the space provided.

M5. FENUM Al explained that "the MIler group” interpreted that
statute to nean that the nane witten in had to match exactly
the nane of the candidate as it is witten on his/her letter of
intent, with no roomfor errors or msspelling. She stated that
the division disagrees that consideration of voter intent
contradicts statute. She said in the recent MIler v. Treadwell
case, the Alaska Suprenme Court determ ned that consideration of
voter intent was consistent with the statute on rules for

counting ballots. She reiterated that the court has
historically and repeatedly adnoni shed the division to consider,
honor, and inplenent voter intent. She deferred to Ms. Felix

for further comment.
8:32:36 AM

M5. FELIX said in the Mller v. Treadwell case the Al aska
Suprene Court recognized that the statute would allow for mnor
m sspellings, poor handwiting, and any variation of the
candidate's nane that was clear enough for the director to
determ ne using the standard of voter intent. The court did not
find that the candidate's nanme nust be witten exactly as on the
decl arati on of candi dacy.

8:34: 28 AM

M5. FENUM Al directed attention to question 6 in the handout -
regarding the chain of command in determning voter intent - and
stated that the division would go through the process of
counting individual wite-in ballots if the aggregate nunber of
wite-in votes satisfies the threshold set out in regulation.
She expl ai ned that that neans either the highest nunber of votes
received for that race over any other printed candidate on the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- February 3, 2011



ball ot or the second highest with a difference of |less than half
a percent. She said that is found in 6 ACC 25.085. In response
to Chair Lynn, she confirned that there have been wite-in
candi dates in the House race who did not warrant a count because
t he nunber of votes was well below the percentage difference.

8:36:45 AM

MS. FENUM Al referred to a handout in the commttee packet,
entitled "Counting Wite-ln Votes - U S. Senate Race," and she
said five boxes were used for the initial ballot sort follow ng
the U S. Senate race in 2010. The first box, she said, was used
for ballots on which the oval was marked next to a candidate's
name that was printed on the ballot. Those ballots do not need
any further review The second box was used for those ballots
| eft blank or those with nore than one oval nmarked.

8:38:32 AM
The commttee took a brief at-ease.
8:39: 13 AM

M5. FENUM Al continued explaining the five-box system She said
box 3 was used for ballots where the oval has been marked, Lisa
Mur kowski's nane was spelled correctly, and the ballot was not
chal | enged. Box 4, she said, was used for those ballots that
were chall enged by one party or the other because, for exanple,
the name witten appeared to be a variation or msspelling of
the wite-in candidate's nane or the nane was not witten
directly on the line. Box 5 was for those wite-ins other than

Li sa Mur kowski . She said she reviewed the ballots in boxes 2
and 4; no other person was involved in making the voter intent
deci si ons. She said the Al aska Suprenme Court validated that

this was a good process in MIller v. Treadwell.

8:40: 41 AM

M5. FELIX, in response to Representative Guenberg, said she
would give the conmittee nmenbers a copy of the citation from
MIller v. Treadwell. In response to a series of questions from
Representative Guenberg, she said the court did not use a
preponderance of the evidence, deference to the agency, or
substitution of judgnment standard in proving the case. She
expl ained that what was used is the voter standard, which is
when the Director of the Division of Elections |ooks at the
ballot, views it in totality, considers each part of the ball ot

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- February 3, 2011



as it relates to all other parts, and nakes the determ nation
with the underlying consideration of enfranchising the voter if
possi bl e. She indicated that the court determned that the
rul es of the past were foll owed and woul d be uphel d.

8:45: 00 AM

M5. FENUM Al directed attention back to the list of questions on
the handout, to question 7 - regarding [nicknanes] used when
voting for a wite-in candidate - and said the ballot counter in
such an instance would be the director of the Division of
El ecti ons. She said this question is hypothetical, because the
deci sion would depend upon the circunstances of the wite-in
canpai gn and what appears on the candidate's wite-in letter of
i ntent. She stated that the entire nane is taken into
consi deration when determ ning voter intent. However, she said,
according to the Uniformed and Overseas Citizens Absentee Voting
Act (UOCCAVA), any abbreviation, msspelling, or other mnor
variation in the form of the name of a candidate or a politica

party shall be disregarded in determining the validity of a
ballot if the intention of the voter can be ascertained. In
response to a question from Representative Seaton, she confirned
that a last name only would be sufficient as a wite-in vote

however, she said that would depend on whether or not there were
one or nore candidates with the sane | ast name, for exanple.

8:48: 33 AM

MS5. FELI X, in response to question from Representative Petersen,
stated that the court, in Mller v. Treadwell, analogized the
wite-in letter declaration of intent to the statute regarding
candi dates runni ng under a nicknanme; however, the court did not
specify the issue of a candidate using a single nane. She said
this is a hypothetical question that would have to be decided at
the tinme based upon all the circunstances.

8:49:38 AM

M5. FELIX, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said that with respect to counting wite-ins, the
aforenentioned U S. Senate race was governed mainly by state
| aw, which incorporates federal |aw

8:52:45 AM

M5. FELIX, in response to a question from Representative
G uenberg regardi ng procedure devel opnent, stated the foll ow ng:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- February 3, 2011



The Al aska Suprene Court specifically considered the
i ssue of whether or not what the division did in this
case required a regulation to be pronul gated under the
Adm ni strative Procedure Act, and specifically found
that ... these are internal agency procedures that
were a comobn sense interpretation of existing
statutes and regulations that did not require
promul gati on of a new regul ati on.

8:54:12 AM

V. FENUM Al , in response to a followup remark from
Representative G uenberg, said although it would be possible to
put into witing the procedure used for wite-in voting, it

would be difficult to put into witing how to determ ne voter
i ntent.

8:55: 30 AM

M5. FELI X indicated that there are current regulations resulting
from UOCAVA, and the proposed SB 31 would codify in statute the
UCCAVA standard that "any abbreviation, msspelling, or other
mnor variation in the form of the name of the candidate or
political party shall be disregarded in determning the validity
of the wite-in ballot if the intention of the voter can be
ascertained.” That standard is set out in Mller v. Treadwell.

CHAIR LYNN stated that to determ ne procedure you have to be
able to define intent, and he questioned how that is possible.

M5. FENUM Al said it is possible to determine that someone who
spell ed Murkowski with a "y" instead of the "i" or a "c" instead
of the first "k" intended to vote for Lisa Mirkowski.

M5. FELI X gave an exanple from Edgnon v. Mbses, an ol der case in
which the issue was that there were a nunmber of ballots wth
funny marks on them but the court was able to figure out the
intent of the voter. She offered further details.

8:59: 33 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said it would seem in Edgnon v. Mbses
that the court |ooked at the determ nation of the Division of
El ections, |ooked at the ballot, and then made an independent
det erm nati on. He said in that sense the court wused a

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- February 3, 2011



substitute standard and did not give discretion to the director
of the division.

M5. FELIX said she thinks in that case Representative G uenberg
is correct; however, she pointed out that the Mller .
Treadwel | case was different.

9: 00: 43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked the chair for bringing forward
this overview. He opined that voter confidence is inportant.
He nentioned the idea of having a group of four or five people
make the decisions about ballots, rather than just the director
of the division. He asked Ms. Fenumai if she was confortable
bei ng the sol e decision maker for the U S. Senate Race in 2010.

9:02: 26 AM

M5. FENUM Al  answered yes. She said she consulted with the
Departnent of Law regarding the ballot counting. She stated her
belief that any person in her position would take the task very
seriously to enfranchise every voter's ballot to ensure it is
count ed. Regarding the idea of having a group in charge, she
said she thinks that would result in many conflicting opinions.
She stated that she thinks it is best, for the sake of
consi stency, for one person to be in charge of nmaking those
deci si ons.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that each human being has
hi s/ her biases, and he has a feeling of unease allow ng just one
person to decide a person's intent.

9:04: 54 AM

M5. FELIX explained that the process of the wite-in count
i ncludes observers from every canpaign involved and all the
political parties, and those people observe the director while
he/ she is making decisions. Ms. Felix said the process is an
open one and "if there were any biases ... going on it would be
patently obvious."

M5. FENUM AI, in response to Chair Lynn, explained that if a
deci sion she nmade during a wite-in count was challenged, then
that ballot would go into a "challenged counted envel ope” and
would be available if the court needed to see it to nmake a
determ nati on

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- February 3, 2011



9:07: 01 AM

M5. FENUM Al, in response to Representative Guenberg, said the
court adjudication process is not governed by the Administrative
Procedure Act.

9:10:14 AM

M5. FENUM Al directed attention to question 8 - regarding the
use of a single nane in a wite-in vote - and stated that under
statute, at mninum the l|last name of the candidate nust be
provi ded. She reviewed that if, for exanple, there was only one
Johnson running as a wite-in, then witing only "Johnson" woul d
suffice. She noved on to question 9 - regarding how closely a
name nmust match the wite-in declaration of candidacy to signa

voter intent - and said this, too, is a hypothetical question.
Notw t hstanding that, she said that if there was, for exanple

one wite-in candidate nanmed John Johnson, the wite-in vote for
J. Johnson would count if there were no other candidates in that
race wth that last name and first initial. She reiterated that
the | ast nanme of the candi date nust be provided, at m ni num

M5. FENUM Al directed attention to question 10 - regarding
adopting resolutions to show concurrence wth the court's
interpretation of existing statute rather than anending statute
- and stated that the division views conformng statute to a
court decision as a housekeepi ng neasure. Further, she offered
her understanding that a resolution would not be sufficient to

anend a statute. In response to Representative Seaton, she said
the legislature can conform statute to a court's decision, to
ensure clarity in future court cases. In response to

Representative G uenberg, she concurred that an intent section
can be added to such | egislation.

9:16: 51 AM

M5. FENUM Al turned to question 11 - regardi ng conparisons - and
stated that there have been no other wite-in races that conpare
to the one that occurred in Novenber 2010. She noted that in
1998, Robin Taylor ran as a wite-in for governor, but received
about 40, 000 votes. She stated her understanding that in 1954,
Senator Strom Thurman of South Carolina was el ected senator as a
wite-in candidate. She said she has not had the opportunity to
research wite-in candidates in other states. In response to
Representative Guenberg, she said she has not researched
whet her or not there were any legal challenges resulting from
Senator Thurman's el ection.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- February 3, 2011



M5. FELIX offered her wunderstanding that no information from
South Carolina's case was in the brief.

M5. FENUM Al, in response to Representative Seaton, recollected
that there was at one tine a wite-in candidate running for the
school board who won the race; however, she said she cannot
remenber the year.

9:19:51 AM
M5. FENUM Al noved on to question 12, which puts forth a

hypot heti cal situation where Joe Jones and Joan Jones are both
wite-in candidates and a wite-in vote is either m sspelled or

i nconpl et e. She said the division would expect that the
canpaigns would work to get the word out on how to properly
wite the candidate's nane. She said in this exanple, the
wite-in vote would not be counted, and the courts may chall enge
t hat . She stated her assunption that if the vote in question
was needed to determine the wnner of a race, then a
proportionate redistribution of the votes would be done. MVs.
Fenum ai directed attention to question 13 - regarding a |ist of
wite-in candidates being posted in voting booths - and

enphasi zed that the division never intended for the list to be
posted in voting booths; the list was to be nmade available to
voters who requested it. She relayed that there was an incident
in Honer where a |list was posted, but as soon as the division
found out, it had the list pulled, and the 17 ballots that were
used during the tine the list was posted were pulled aside in
case they were challenged at a future date, but there was no
chal l enge to those ball ots.

9:22:51 AM

M5. FELI X, in response to a question from Representative Seaton
regarding the rationale in not putting up the list, stated that
this is a mtter over which there was Ilitigation, and the
di vision developed a policy that it felt was fair in having the
list if a voter asked for it. She said the Al aska Suprene Court
ultimately upheld the division's decision. In response to a
foll owup question, she said challengers of the list clained
that [putting the list up in the voting booth] would have given
the wite-in voters an unfair advantage and influenced their
deci si on.

9:26: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- February 3, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expl ained that he is questioning the fact
that not all candidates' names are handed to a voter when
requested - just the nanmes of wite-in candi dates.

9:26: 32 AM

M5. FENUM Al directed attention to question 14 - regarding the
voter registration database - and said the list is available for
purchase by the public in hard copy and electronically. She
said the public list contains each registered voter's nanme in
ascensi on nunber, residence address, numiling address, district,
precinct, party affiliation, sex, and 10-year voting history.
She said there are a variety of nmethods by which to search for
dat a. In response to Representative Petersen, she said the
di vi sion does not have the ability to pull up all registrations
done by a specific registrar, but can l|ook at a voter's
regi stration docunent to ascertain who signed the form as a
regi strar.

9:29:53 AM
M5. FENUM AlI, referring to questions 15 and 16 - database
searches and citizenship verification - explained that when a

voter conpletes the voter registration application, he/she
swears under penalty of perjury that he/she is a citizen of the
US. In response to a question from Chair Lynn, she said if the
division was to find out that a person who registered to vote
was not a US. «citizen, it would take steps to renove that
person from the rolls. In response to further comments from
Representative Petersen, she said the division hopes that a
registrar would not <check the <citizenship box for soneone
wi thout getting confirmation from the person that he/she is a
citizen of the U S She said there are no docunentations
required to be shown to the registrar. She told Representative
Petersen that if he wants specific people checked, then the
division wuld look those people up on the aforenentioned
m crofilmed information. She said she is not sure how far the
division's part would go in that regard.

9:37:24 AM
M5. FENUM AI, in response to Representative P. WIson, said
prior to every election, the division sends out public service

announcenents to remnd people about updating their voter
regi stration information.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- February 3, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON suggested that it would be good to work
on this issue when it is not an el ection year.

MS. FENUM Al said she would take that into consideration
9: 38: 37 AM

M5. FENUM Al, in response to Chair Lynn, confirmed that voters
have the right to keep their residence address confidential, as
long as they are able to provide the division with a different
mai | i ng address. In response to a followup question, she
stated her assunption that people who have been victins of
donmestic violence and police officers may not want others to
know where they |ive.

9:42: 30 AM

MS. FELI X noted that AS 15.07.195 gives the right to keep ones
residential address confidential. In response to Representative
Seaton, she said currently there is no authority for the
division to treat a candidate differently from any other voter
in regard to having the right to make a residential address
confidential .

9:44: 15 AM
M5. FELI X, in response to Representative Seaton, stated that the

subject of a voter's residential address was not an issue that
arose during Edgnon v. Moses.

9:47: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to a one-page
menmor andum [included in the commttee packet] from Legislative
Legal and Research Services, dated 2/2/11, which addresses AS
15/ 15/ 361.

9:47: 33 AM

M5. FENUM Al said AS 15.15.161 is a statute that disallows the
use of stickers on ballots. She said that statute was enacted
when the state converted from punch card voting machines to
optical scan voting machines. She explained that the stickers
have the potential to damage the optical scan nachines; the
stickers could peel off and render the optical scan wunit
dysfunctional. She said the division believes that that statute
should remain in place.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- February 3, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG t al ked about finding a way to use the
stickers during wite-in voting to help those who are not fluent
in the English | anguage.

9:49: 27 AM

M5. FENUM Al said the division could talk to the naker of the
optical scan machine to see if this is possible. She then
addressed questions that she said Representative G uenberg had
submtted to her. First, she said there were no issues wth the
observers during the wite-in ballot counting process from the
Novenber 2010 el ection. Second, she relayed that the wite-in
counting process was conpleted on Novenber 17, the U S. Senate
race was certified by her on Decenber 28, and the term began on
January 3, 2011; however, the race could not be certified until
the court lifted the federal injunction. Finally, she said that
for the [wite-in counting], the division incurred approximtely
$50, 000, which covered election worker paynents, facility

rentals, security, and staff tine. She said that does not
include the legal costs for the MIler v. Treadwell case, which
the Departnent of Law has estimated will cone to approxi mately
$150, 000.

9:52:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Fenum ai to consider what
| anguage nmay be needed to prevent the possibility that two of
the sane nanes are submtted as wite-in candi dates.

9:53:42 AM

M5. FENUM Al said she would address that issue and provide
Representative Seaton with further information.

9:54:12 AM

CHAIR LYNN thanked Ms. Fenumai for her work on elections and
for the overview He invited commttee nenbers to let M.
Fenum ai know what information they would Iike fromthe division
in the future.

9:54: 43 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked Ms. Fenumiai to consider the use

of "heat stanps,” such as the copy and draft stanps used by the
| egi sl ature.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- February 3, 2011



9:55: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he would like a report on how the
hand count of 5 percent of each House district has functioned
and whether there have been any cases in which the hand tallies
and the nmachi ne counts have not corresponded. He said he woul d

also like to know how the requirenment for candidate nane
rotati on has been worKking. Last, he said he would like to see
an analysis of the mail-in ballot, such as is used in Oregon, to

figure out if it would work in Al aska.
9:56: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN nentioned a situation where a radio talk
show host solicited people with nanmes simlar to that of a
wite-in candidate already running for office to sign up as
wite-in candidates "at the last mnute." He opined that that
situation caused conplications related to the election, and he
asked if legislation is needed to prevent sonething |ike that
from happening in the future.

CHAIR LYNN recommended considering the First Anendnent when
| ooking into that issue.

9:57:37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER thanked the many election workers, and
remarked on the privilege of voting in the US. He stated
support for |ocal oversight.

CHAI R LYNN remarked upon the current troubles in Egypt, and he
said although debate can be heated, the U S. has "a peacefu
transition of governnent."

9:59:40 AM

ADJ OURNNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
State Affairs Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 10:00
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- February 3, 2011



